045

IN THE SUPREME COURT IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE

MAR 25 1993

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By-Chief Deputy Clerk

81,446

DOCKET #

MARVIN V. TAYLOR,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

WRIT OF CERTIORARI FROM THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

> JAMES R. THIES, SR., ESQUIRE Florida Bar #340111 Post Office Box 815 Orange Park, Florida 32067-0815 (904) 264-8602 ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

ISSUE: THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT SHOULD INVOKE ITS JURISDICTION PURSUANT TO ARTICLE V, SECTION 3 AND RULE 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) IN THAT THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW.

The First District Court of Appeal filed its opinion in this case on January 11, 1993. Appellant filed a Motion for rehearing or for clarification of Decision on January 19, 1993. Said Motion was denied on February 19, 1993 and the First District Court of appeal entered its Mandate on March 9, 1993. The Notice for this Court to invoke its discretionary jurisdiction was filed March 17, 1993.

Appellant's argument below for which he is now seeking review concerns the due process violation of paying confidential informants for their trial testimony based upon a contingency arrangement where such testimony by the confidential informant is necessary for a criminal prosecution.

Briefly, the Appellant was convicted on one of two alleged control buys made by a confidential informant who was paid for each control buy based upon the quantity of drugs purchased, usually \$20.00. In Appellant's case, it became necessary for the confidential informant to testify at trial, where he was the only witness to the drug transactions involving Appellant. The confidential informant was promised payment for court appearances and depositions. As to the amount of pay the confidential informant was to be paid for his trial testimony by the State, the confidential informant testified at trial that he did not know how much he was to be paid, although he was sure that he would be "treated right."

The confidential informant was paid by the Clay County Sheriff's Office. They controlled the amount of money the confidential informant was to be paid, including his trial testimony. If the confidential informant did not testify, there would be no conviction. No one in the courtroom, including the confidential informant knew how much the confidential informant was going to be paid or was paid. Attempts through discovery to learn the amounts of payment to this confidential informant for drug transactions and other involvement in the various cases were precluded by the trial court. The First District Court of Appeals upheld the trial court on these discovery issues raised on appeal.

The First District Court of Appeal ruled this manner of paying a confidential informant was not a Due Process Violation. The First District Court of Appeal reasoned that confidential informants could be paid for their court testimony because in State v. Glosson, 462 So.2d 1082 (Fla. 1985), the Florida Supreme Court; a) was dealing with a case where the testimony in a criminal trial by a confidential informant would result in a financial gain to the confidential informant through civil forfeitures if they gained a criminal conviction, b) held that the proper raising of the due process violation was before trial, not during a motion for a new trial, and c) held that each defendant asserted an entrapment defense where there was an enormous financial incentive to testify falsely in order for there to be a successful prosecution.

Appellant argues the opinion of the First District Court of Appeals expressly and directly conflicts with this Court's decision in State v. Glosson, 462 So.2d 1082 (Fla. 1985). The jurisdiction

of the Florida Supreme Court may be invoked in this case pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

The Florida Supreme Court held in <u>Glosson</u>, supra: "a trial court may properly dismiss criminal charges for constitutional due process violations where an informant stands to gain a contingent fee conditioned on cooperation and testimony in the criminal prosecution when the testimony is critical to a successful prosecution." In addressing the first issue of the First District Court's opinion, the Supreme Court did not say where the money to be paid the confidential informant was to originate, only that it be contingent upon cooperation and testimony in the criminal prosecution.

As to the second issue, the fact that the confidential informant was to be paid for court trial testimony was not learned until trial by the Appellant. Regardless, a due process violation can occur at trial as it did in this case and <u>Glosson</u> does not say otherwise.

The Florida Supreme Court in <u>Glosson</u> very clearly states that the predisposition of the defendant is not a consideration when this due process violation is raised, that it is a matter of law to be decided by the court, not a jury question as in the case of entrapment and thus eliminates the entrapment issue.

Appellant argues the Florida Supreme Court should invoke its jurisdiction in this case because of the serious ramifications if the state is allowed to pay its confidential informants a contingent fee for trial testimony. Especially when the defendant, jury and judge know only the amount to be paid is contingent upon

the testimony by the confidential informant and that the person testifying will be "treated right". No defendant can defend against such governmental action and this clearly falls within the concerns of the Florida Supreme Court in Glosson, supra.