IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SID J. WHITE

043

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

MARVIN V. TAYLOR,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 81,446

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

CAROLYN J. MOSLEY, #593280 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

(

JAMES W. ROGERS, #325791 BUREAU CHIEF-CRIMINAL APPEALS

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Article V, section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution states, in pertinent part, the following:

The supreme court ... [m]ay review any decision of a district court of appeal ... that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law.

The conflict between decisions "must appear within the four corners of the majority decision," and "[n]either a dissenting opinion nor the record itself can be used to establish jurisdiction." <u>Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). Neither will a concurring opinion support jurisdiction under section 3(b)(3). <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980). In addition, it is the "conflict of decisions, not conflict of opinions or reasons that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari." <u>Id.</u>, at 1359.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In the instant case, Gerald Jefferson and the Clay County Sheriff's Office had an oral agreement--Jefferson would participate in recorded controlled buys of cocaine and testify in deposition and at trial, and the police would pay Jefferson for his services, depending on the amount of drugs involved and the extent of his involvement. The police paid Jefferson an average of \$20 for each drug transaction. Jefferson participated in approximately 40 to 60 cases. The most money he ever made in one day was approximately \$200 to \$250. Jefferson did not know how much he would be paid to testify in court, but he expected to be "treated right."

Petitioner, Marvin Taylor (hereinafter Taylor), was charged with two counts of selling cocaine, which occurred on June 7, 1991 and June 21, 1991 respectively. To prove its case, respondent, State of Florida (hereinafter State), relied on the testimony of Gerald Jefferson and Detective Jett, who described the controlled street buys. A videotape of the first transaction depicted Taylor, but the second did not. Taylor did not claim the entrapment defense. The jury convicted Taylor of the first transaction, but acquitted him on the second. Based on these facts, the First District Court of Appeal held that no due process violation occurred. (Slip Opinion of First District Court of Appeal, 2-5,8)

- 2 -

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the First District Court of Appeal in the instant case does not expressly and directly conflict with the decision of this Court in <u>State v. Glosson</u>, <u>infra</u>. The same legal principle was applied in both cases. The facts were different, which explains the opposite results that were reached in each case.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THIS CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION OF THIS COURT IN <u>STATE V. GLOSSON</u>, 462 SO. 2D 1082 (FLA. 1985).

In <u>State v. Glosson</u>, 462 So. 2d 1082 (Fla. 1985), Norwood Wilson and the Sheriff of Levy County had an oral agreement--Wilson promised to initiate and participate in criminal investigations and to testify in court, and the Sheriff promised to pay Wilson 10% of the proceeds received from all civil forfeitures resulting from Wilson's criminal investigations. The State Attorney's Office knew about this agreement and even supervised Wilson's investigations.

Wilson traveled from Levy County do Dade County where he made a deal to sell several hundred pounds of marijuana to six people. These six people came to Levy county, took possession of the marijuana that was unknowingly controlled by the Sheriff, and soon afterwards were arrested. The Sheriff seized several vehicles and over \$80,000 in cash that were subject to civil forfeiture. Wilson's testimony was critical to a successful prosecution of the six defendants. The defendants' theory of defense was entrapment.

In disposing of the case, this court stated, "We ... hold that the agreement in this case to pay an informant a contingent fee conditioned on his cooperation and testimony in criminal prosecutions violates constitutional due process." Id., at 1084.

- 4 -

The decisions in <u>Glosson</u> and the instant case are <u>not</u> in express and direct conflict. The same principle of law was applied in both cases. The courts reached different results because of different facts. The financial reward in <u>Glosson</u> was conditioned on a certain result (conviction), whereas in the instant case, the financial reward was conditioned on the performance of a certain act (testifying). (Agreements to obtain testimony are a common occurrence. Experts are paid to testify, and codefendants are given leniency in exchange for their testimony.) The informant, in the instant case, was also paid for controlled buys, whereas in <u>Glosson</u>, the informant acted alone.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing discussion, the State respectfully requests this Honorable Court to decline to accept discretionary jurisdiction to review the instant case.